



AIA® Document A132® – 2019

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor, Construction Manager as Adviser Edition

AGREEMENT made as of the Tenth day of April in the year Two Thousand Twenty-three
(In words, indicate day, month, and year.)

BETWEEN the Owner:
(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

Tippecanoe County Board of Commissioners
20 N. Third Street
Lafayette, IN 47901
Telephone Number: (765) 423-9215

and the Contractor:
(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

Huston Electric
2723 Old Romney Rd.
Lafayette, IN 47909
Telephone Number: (765) 474-6115

BID PACKAGE 1M ELECTRICAL - CSI 26 00 00

for the following Project:
(Name, location, and detailed description)

22-05-Tippecanoe Co. Animal Shelter
3150 Sagamore Parkway South Lafayette, IN. 47909
A full renovation of the existing extension building, new construct of approximately
12,000 sw. ft. for a new animal shelter. The site is complete demolition with new utilities,
parking lots and landscape.

The Construction Manager:
(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

Tecton Construction Managment, Inc., Professional Corporation
102 North 3rd Street, Suite 201
Lafayette, IN 47901
Telephone Number: (765) 429-5232

The Architect:
(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

Shelter Panners of America
1106 West Randol Mill Road, Suite 300, Arlington, TX 76012
Telephone Number: (817) 265-8522

This document has important legal consequences. Consultation with an attorney is encouraged with respect to its completion or modification.

This document is intended to be used in conjunction with AIA Documents A232™–2019, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, Construction Manager as Adviser Edition; B132™–2019, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect, Construction Manager as Adviser Edition; and C132™–2019, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Construction Manager as Adviser. AIA Document A232™–2019 is adopted in this document by reference. Do not use with other general conditions unless this document is modified.

The Owner and Contractor agree as follows.



Init.
/

TABLE OF ARTICLES

- 1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
 - 2 THE WORK OF THIS CONTRACT
 - 3 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND DATES OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
 - 4 CONTRACT SUM
 - 5 PAYMENTS
 - 6 DISPUTE RESOLUTION
 - 7 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION
 - 8 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
 - 9 ENUMERATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
- ~~EXHIBIT A – INSURANCE AND BONDS~~
~~EXHIBIT B – DETERMINATION OF THE COST OF THE WORK~~

ARTICLE 1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary, and other Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of this Agreement, other documents listed in this Agreement, and Modifications issued after execution of this Agreement, all of which form the Contract, and are as fully a part of the Contract as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. The Contract represents the entire and integrated agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. An enumeration of the Contract Documents, other than Modifications, appears in Article 9.

ARTICLE 2 THE WORK OF THIS CONTRACT

The Contractor shall fully execute the Work described in the Contract Documents, except as specifically indicated in the Contract Documents to be the responsibility of others.

The Contractor shall be responsible for BID PACKAGE 1M ELECTRICAL - CSI 26 00 00 work more fully described in Tecton Work Descriptions titled “TIPPECANOE COUNTY ANIMAL SHELTER -PROJECT 22-05-BID PHASE 1” dated March 8, 2023 and Tecton Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 3 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND DATES OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

§ 3.1 The date of commencement of the Work shall be:

(Check one of the following boxes.)

The date of this Agreement.

A date set forth in a notice to proceed issued by the Owner.

Established as follows:

(Insert a date or a means to determine the date of commencement of the Work.)

Commencement: April 10, 2023

If a date of commencement of the Work is not selected, then the date of commencement shall be the date of this Agreement.

§ 3.2 The Contract Time shall be measured from the date of commencement of the Work.

§ 3.3 Substantial Completion of the Project or Portions Thereof

§ 3.3.1 Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, the date of Substantial Completion of the Work of all of the Contractors for the Project will be:

(Insert the date of Substantial Completion of the Work of all Contractors for the Project.)

Substantial Completion: July 12, 2024

§ 3.3.2 Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, if portions of the Work of all of the Contractors for the Project are to be completed prior to Substantial Completion of the entire Work of all of the Contractors for the Project, the Contractors shall achieve Substantial Completion of such portions by the following dates:

Portion of Work	Substantial Completion Date
<u>NA</u>	

§ 3.4 When the Work of this Contract, or any Portion Thereof, is Substantially Complete

§ 3.4.1 Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall substantially complete the entire Work of this Contract:

(Check one of the following boxes and complete the necessary information.)

Not later than () calendar days from the date of commencement of the Work.

By the following date: per Article 3.3.1 above.

§ 3.4.2 Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, if portions of the Work of this Contract are to be substantially complete prior to when the entire Work of this Contract shall be substantially complete, the Contractor shall substantially complete such portions by the following dates:

Portion of Work	Date to be substantially complete
<u>NA</u>	

§ 3.4.3 If the Contractor fails to substantially complete the Work of this Contract, or portions thereof, as provided in this Section 3.4, liquidated damages, if any, shall be assessed as set forth in Section 4.5.

ARTICLE 4 CONTRACT SUM

§ 4.1 The Owner shall pay the Contractor the Contract Sum in current funds for the Contractor's performance of the Contract. The Contract Sum shall be one of the following:

(Check the appropriate box.)

Stipulated Sum, in accordance with Section 4.2 below

Cost of the Work plus the Contractor's Fee, in accordance with Section 4.3 below

Cost of the Work plus the Contractor's Fee with a Guaranteed Maximum Price, in accordance with Section 4.4 below

(Based on the selection above, complete Section 4.2, 4.3 or 4.4 below.)

§ 4.2 Stipulated Sum

§ 4.2.1 The Contract Sum shall be Five Hundred Fifty-Seven THOUSAND Four HUNDRED Thirty-One DOLLARS and Zero CENTS (\$ 557,431.00), subject to additions and deductions as provided in the Contract Documents. If the Owner IS NOT exempt from Indiana Sales Tax, then all tax is included in the Contract Sum above. BASE BID of \$557,931.00 with Alternates below.

§ 4.2.2 Alternates

§ 4.2.2.1 Alternates, if any, included in the Contract Sum:

<u>Item</u>	<u>Price</u>
<u>DEDUCT #5 - Reduce quantity of hot water heaters and relocate.</u>	<u>-<\$500.00></u>

§ 4.2.2.2 Subject to the conditions noted below, the following alternates may be accepted by the Owner following execution of this Agreement. Upon acceptance, the Owner shall issue a Modification to this Agreement. *(Insert below each alternate and the conditions that must be met for the Owner to accept the alternate.)*

<u>Item</u>	<u>Price</u>	<u>Conditions for Acceptance</u>
<u>NA</u>		

§ 4.2.3 Allowances, if any, included in the Contract ~~Sum~~; Sum for work ONLY as directed by Tecton Construction Management:
(Identify each allowance.)

<u>Item</u>	<u>Price</u>
<u>NA</u>	

§ 4.2.4 Unit prices, if any:
(Identify the item and state the unit price, and quantity limitations, if any, to which the unit price will be applicable.)

<u>Item</u>	<u>Units and Limitations</u>	<u>Price per Unit (\$0.00)</u>
<u>Labor Rate</u>	<u>\$/Hour</u>	<u>\$92.00/Hour</u>
<u>Mark Up for Material Cost</u>	<u>Percentage</u>	<u>15%</u>
<u>Mark Up for Equipment Rental</u>	<u>Percentage</u>	<u>5%</u>
<u>Mark Up for Subcontractors</u>	<u>Percentage</u>	<u>10%</u>

<u>Item</u>	<u>Units and Limitations</u>	<u>Price per Unit (\$0.00)</u>
<u>-</u>		

§ 4.3 Cost of the Work Plus Contractor's Fee without a Guaranteed Maximum Price

§ 4.3.1 The Cost of the Work is as defined in Exhibit B, Determination of the Cost of the Work.

§ 4.3.2 The Contractor's Fee:

(State a lump sum, percentage of Cost of the Work or other provision for determining the Contractor's Fee.)

NA

§ 4.3.3 The method of adjustment of the Contractor's Fee for changes in the Work:

NA

§ 4.3.4 Limitations, if any, on a Subcontractor's overhead and profit for increases in the cost of its portion of the Work:

Init.

NA

§ 4.3.5 Rental rates for Contractor-owned equipment shall not exceed _____ percent (_____ %) of the standard rental rate paid at the place of the Project.

§ 4.3.6 Unit prices, if any:

(Identify the item and state the unit price and quantity limitations, if any, to which the unit price will be applicable.)

Item	Units and Limitations	Price per Unit (\$0.00)
<u>NA</u>		

§ 4.3.7 The Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Construction Manager, within 14 days of executing this Agreement, a written Control Estimate for the Owner's review and approval. The Control Estimate shall include the items in Section B.1 of Exhibit B, Determination of the Cost of the Work.

§ 4.4 Cost of the Work Plus Contractor's Fee with a Guaranteed Maximum Price

§ 4.4.1 The Cost of the Work is as defined in Exhibit B, Determination of the Cost of the Work.

§ 4.4.2 The Contractor's Fee:

(State a lump sum, percentage of Cost of the Work or other provision for determining the Contractor's Fee.)

NA

§ 4.4.3 The method of adjustment of the Contractor's Fee for changes in the Work:

NA

§ 4.4.4 Limitations, if any, on a Subcontractor's overhead and profit for increases in the cost of its portion of the Work:

NA

§ 4.4.5 Rental rates for Contractor-owned equipment shall not exceed NA percent (NA %) of the standard rental rate paid at the place of the Project.

§ 4.4.6 Unit Prices, if any:

(Identify the item and state the unit price and quantity limitations, if any, to which the unit price will be applicable.)

Item	Units and Limitations	Price per Unit (\$0.00)
<u>NA</u>		

§ 4.4.7 Guaranteed Maximum Price

§ 4.4.7.1 The Contract Sum is guaranteed by the Contractor not to exceed NA (\$ NA), subject to additions and deductions by Change Order as provided in the Contract Documents. This maximum sum is referred to in the Contract Documents as the Guaranteed Maximum Price. Costs which would cause the Guaranteed Maximum Price to be exceeded shall be paid by the Contractor without reimbursement by the Owner.

§ 4.4.7.2 Alternates

§ 4.4.7.2.1 Alternates, if any, included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price:

Item	Price
<u>NA</u>	

§ 4.4.7.2.2 Subject to the conditions noted below, the following alternates may be accepted by the Owner following execution of this Agreement. Upon acceptance, the Owner shall issue a Modification to this Agreement.

(Insert below each alternate and the conditions that must be met for the Owner to accept the alternate.)

Item
NA

Price

Conditions for Acceptance

§ 4.4.7.3 Allowances, if any, included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price:
(Identify each allowance.)

Item
NA

Price

§ 4.4.7.4 Assumptions, if any, upon which the Guaranteed Maximum Price is based:
(Identify each assumption.)

NA

§ 4.4.8 To the extent that the Contract Documents are anticipated to require further development, the Guaranteed Maximum Price includes the costs attributable to such further development consistent with the Contract Documents and reasonably inferable therefrom. Such further development does not include changes in scope, systems, kinds and quality of materials, finishes, or equipment, all of which, if required, shall be incorporated by Change Order.

§ 4.4.9 The Owner shall authorize preparation of revisions to the Contract Documents that incorporate the agreed-upon assumptions contained in Section 4.4.7.4. The Owner shall promptly furnish such revised Contract Documents to the Contractor. The Contractor shall notify the Owner and ~~Architect~~ Construction Manager of any inconsistencies between the agreed-upon assumptions contained in Section 4.4.7.4 and the revised Contract Documents.

§ 4.5 Liquidated damages, if any:
(Insert terms and conditions for liquidated damages, if any, to be assessed in accordance with Section 3.4.)

Failure to commence work or to achieve the completion of the work by the date shown on the Construction Manager's Project Construction Schedule, and as revised in the weekly Contractor meetings, due to the fault of the Contractor will result in the payment of liquidated damages to OWNER of \$300.00 per day or 0.003 times the contract sum (as defined in Article 4) per day, whichever amount is greater, to be assessed as delays occur. If this Contractor falls behind the most current Construction Manager's Project Schedule by three (3) days, Tecton Construction Management, Inc. further reserves the right to hire additional help to bring the project back on schedule at the Contractor's expense. NOTE: In the event Tecton Construction Management, Inc. waives liquidated damages for one portion of the schedule, that action does not eliminate the option, at the sole discretion of Tecton Construction Management, Inc., to assess liquidated damages for the other portions of the schedule.

§ 4.6 Other:
(Insert provisions for bonus, cost savings or other incentives, if any, that might result in a change to the Contract Sum.)

NA

ARTICLE 5 PAYMENTS

§ 5.1 Progress Payments

§ 5.1.1 Based upon Applications for Payment submitted to the Construction Manager by the Contractor, and Certificates for Payment issued by the Construction Manager ~~and Architect~~, the Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Sum, to the Contractor, as provided below and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

§ 5.1.2 The period covered by each Application for Payment shall be one calendar month ending on the last day of the month, or as follows:

The period covered shall be the twenty-sixth (26th) day of the previous month through the twenty-fifth (25th) day of the current month.

§ 5.1.3 Provided that ~~an Application for Payment is AIA forms G702 and G703 Application for Payment and a Tecton Waiver of Lien are~~ received by the Construction Manager not later than the twenty-fifth day of a month, the Owner shall make payment of the amount certified to the Contractor not later than the thirtieth day of the following month. If an Application for Payment is received by the Construction Manager after the application date fixed above, payment of the amount certified shall be made by the Owner not later than ~~() days~~ the next pay request period after the Construction Manager receives the Application for Payment.
(Federal, state or local laws may require payment within a certain period of time.)

§ 5.1.4 Progress Payments Where the Contract Sum is Based on a Stipulated Sum

§ 5.1.4.1 Each Application for Payment shall be based on the most recent schedule of values submitted by the Contractor in accordance with the Contract Documents. The schedule of values shall allocate the entire Contract Sum among the various portions of the Work. The schedule of values shall be prepared in such form, and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy, as the Construction Manager ~~and Architect~~ may require. This schedule of values shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Contractor's Applications for Payment.

§ 5.1.4.2 Applications for Payment shall show the percentage of completion of each portion of the Work as of the end of the period covered by the Application for Payment.

§ 5.1.4.3 In accordance with AIA Document A232™–2019, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, Construction Manager as Adviser Edition, and subject to other provisions of the Contract Documents, the amount of each progress payment shall be computed as follows:

§ 5.1.4.3.1 The amount of each progress payment shall first include:

- .1 That portion of the Contract Sum properly allocable to completed Work;
- .2 That portion of the Contract Sum properly allocable to materials and equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the completed construction, or, if approved in advance by the Owner, suitably stored off the site at a location agreed upon in writing; and
- .3 That portion of Construction Change Directives that the ~~Architect determines, in the Architect's~~ Construction Manager determines, in the Construction Manager's professional judgment, to be reasonably justified.

§ 5.1.4.3.2 The amount of each progress payment shall then be reduced by:

- .1 The aggregate of any amounts previously paid by the Owner;
- .2 The amount, if any, for Work that remains uncorrected and for which the ~~Architect-Construction~~ Manager has previously withheld a Certificate for Payment as provided in Article 9 of AIA Document A232–2019;
- .3 Any amount for which the Contractor does not intend to pay a Subcontractor or material supplier, unless the Work has been performed by others the Contractor intends to pay;
- .4 For Work performed or defects discovered since the last payment application, any amount for which the ~~Architect-Construction~~ Manager may withhold payment, or nullify a Certificate of Payment in whole or in part, as provided in Article 9 of AIA Document A232–2019; and
- .5 Retainage withheld pursuant to Section 5.1.7.

§ 5.1.5 Progress Payments Where the Contract Sum is Based on the Cost of the Work without a Guaranteed Maximum Price

§ 5.1.5.1 With each Application for Payment, the Contractor shall submit the cost control information required in Exhibit B, Determination of the Cost of the Work, along with payrolls, petty cash accounts, receipted invoices, or invoices with check vouchers attached, and any other evidence required by the ~~Owner, Construction Manager or Architect-Owner or Construction Manager~~ to demonstrate that payments already made by the Contractor on account of the Cost of the Work equal or exceed progress payments already received by the Contractor, plus payrolls for the period covered by the present Application for Payment, less that portion of the payments attributable to the Contractor's Fee.

§ 5.1.5.2 Applications for Payment shall show the Cost of the Work actually incurred by the Contractor through the end of the period covered by the Application for Payment and for which the Contractor has made or intends to make actual payment prior to the next Application for Payment.

§ 5.1.5.3 In accordance with AIA Document A232-2019 and subject to other provisions of the Contract Documents, the amount of each progress payment shall be computed as follows:

§ 5.1.5.3.1 The amount of each progress payment shall first include:

- .1 The Cost of the Work as described in Exhibit B, Determination of the Cost of the Work;
- .2 That portion of Construction Change Directives that the ~~Architect determines, in the Architect's~~ Construction Manager determines, in the Construction Manager's professional judgment, to be reasonably justified; and
- .3 The Contractor's Fee computed upon the Cost of the Work described in the preceding Section 5.1.5.3.1.1 at the rate stated in Section 4.3.2; or if the Contractor's Fee is stated as a fixed sum in Section 4.3.2 an amount which bears the same ratio to that fixed-sum Fee as the Cost of the Work included in Section 5.1.5.3.1.1 bears to a reasonable estimate of the probable Cost of the Work upon its completion.

§ 5.1.5.3.2 The amount of each progress payment shall then be reduced by:

- .1 The aggregate of any amounts previously paid by the Owner;
- .2 The amount, if any, for Work that remains uncorrected and for which the ~~Architect-Construction~~ Manager has previously withheld a Certificate for Payment as provided in Article 9 of AIA Document A232-2019;
- .3 Any amount for which the Contractor does not intend to pay a Subcontractor or material supplier, unless the Work has been performed by others the Contractor intends to pay;
- .4 For Work performed or defects discovered since the last payment application, any amount for which the ~~Architect-Construction~~ Manager may withhold payment, or nullify a Certificate of Payment in whole or in part, as provided in Article 9 of AIA Document A232-2019;
- .5 The shortfall, if any, indicated by the Contractor in the documentation required by Section 5.1.5.1 to substantiate prior Applications for Payment, or resulting from errors subsequently discovered by the Owner's auditors in such documentation; and
- .6 Retainage withheld pursuant to Section 5.1.7.

§ 5.1.5.4 The Owner, Construction Manager and Contractor shall agree upon a mutually acceptable procedure for review and approval of payments to Subcontractors and the percentage of retainage held on Subcontracts, and the Contractor shall execute subcontracts in accordance with those agreements.

§ 5.1.5.5 In taking action on the Contractor's Applications for Payment, the Construction Manager and ~~Architect~~ Construction Manager shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of the information furnished by the Contractor, and such action shall not be deemed to be a representation that (1) the Construction Manager and ~~Architect-Construction~~ Manager have made a detailed examination, audit or arithmetic verification of the documentation submitted in accordance with Article 5 or other supporting data; (2) that the Construction Manager and ~~Architect~~ have made exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections; or (3) that the Construction Manager and ~~Architect~~ have made examinations to ascertain how or for what purposes the Contractor has used amounts previously paid on account of the Contract. Such examinations, audits and verifications, if required by the Owner, will be performed by the Owner's auditors acting in the sole interest of the Owner.

§ 5.1.5.6 Except with the Owner's prior approval, the Contractor shall not make advance payments to suppliers for materials or equipment which have not been delivered and stored at the site.

§ 5.1.5.7 If final completion of the Work is materially delayed through no fault of the Contractor, then the Owner shall pay the Contractor any additional amounts in accordance with Article 9 of AIA Document A232-2019.

§ 5.1.6 Progress Payments Where the Contract Sum is Based on the Cost of the Work with a Guaranteed Maximum Price

§ 5.1.6.1 With each Application for Payment, the Contractor shall submit payrolls, petty cash accounts, receipted invoices or invoices with check vouchers attached, and any other evidence required by the ~~Owner, Construction~~ Manager or Architect-Owner or Construction Manager to demonstrate that payments already made by the Contractor on account of the Cost of the Work equal or exceed progress payments already received by the Contractor plus payrolls for the period covered by the present Application for Payment, less that portion of the progress payments attributable to the Contractor's Fee.

§ 5.1.6.2 Each Application for Payment shall be based on the most recent schedule of values submitted by the Contractor in accordance with the Contract Documents. The schedule of values shall allocate the entire Guaranteed Maximum Price among: (1) the various portions of the Work; (2) any contingency for costs that are included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price but not otherwise allocated to another line item or included in a Change Order; and (3) the Contractor's Fee.

§ 5.1.6.2.1 The schedule of values shall be prepared in such form, and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy, as the Construction Manager ~~and Architect~~ may require. This schedule of values shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Contractor's Applications for Payment.

§ 5.1.6.2.2 The allocation of the Guaranteed Maximum Price under this Section 5.1.6.2 shall not constitute a separate guaranteed maximum price for the Cost of the Work of each individual line item in the schedule of values.

§ 5.1.6.2.3 When the Contractor allocates costs from a contingency to another line item in the schedule of values, the Contractor shall submit supporting documentation to the ~~Architect~~ and Construction Manager.

§ 5.1.6.3 Applications for Payment shall show the percentage of completion of each portion of the Work as of the end of the period covered by the Application for Payment. The percentage of completion shall be the lesser of (1) the percentage of that portion of the Work which has actually been completed; or (2) the percentage obtained by dividing (a) the expense that has actually been incurred by the Contractor on account of that portion of the Work and for which the Contractor has made payment or intends to make payment prior to the next Application for Payment by (b) the share of the Guaranteed Maximum Price allocated to that portion of the Work in the schedule of values.

§ 5.1.6.4 In accordance with AIA Document A232-2019, and subject to other provisions of the Contract Documents, the amount of each progress payment shall be computed as follows:

§ 5.1.6.4.1 The amount of each progress payment shall first include:

- .1 That portion of the Guaranteed Maximum Price properly allocable to completed Work as determined by multiplying the percentage of completion of each portion of the Work by the share of the Guaranteed Maximum Price allocated to that portion of the Work in the most recent schedule of values;
- .2 That portion of the Guaranteed Maximum Price properly allocable to materials and equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the completed construction or, if approved in writing in advance by the Owner, suitably stored off the site at a location agreed upon in writing;
- .3 That portion of Construction Change Directives that the ~~Architect determines, in the Architect's~~ Construction Manager determines, in the Construction Manager's professional judgment, to be reasonably justified; and
- .4 The Contractor's Fee, computed upon the Cost of the Work described in the preceding Sections 5.1.6.4.1.1 and 5.1.6.4.1.2 at the rate stated in Section 4.4.2 or, if the Contractor's Fee is stated as a fixed sum in that Section, an amount that bears the same ratio to that fixed-sum fee as the Cost of the Work included in Sections 5.1.6.4.1.1 and 5.1.6.4.1.2 bears to a reasonable estimate of the probable Cost of the Work upon its completion.

§ 5.1.6.4.2 The amount of each progress payment shall then be reduced by:

- .1 The aggregate of any amounts previously paid by the Owner;
- .2 The amount, if any, for Work that remains uncorrected and for which the ~~Architect~~ Construction Manager has previously withheld a Certificate for Payment as provided in Article 9 of AIA Document A232-2019;
- .3 Any amount for which the Contractor does not intend to pay a Subcontractor or material supplier, unless the Work has been performed by others the Contractor intends to pay;
- .4 For Work performed or defects discovered since the last payment application, any amount for which the ~~Architect~~ Construction Manager may withhold payment, or nullify a Certificate of Payment in whole or in part, as provided in Article 9 of AIA Document A232-2019;

- .5 The shortfall, if any, indicated by the Contractor in the documentation required by Section 5.1.6.1 to substantiate prior Applications for Payment, or resulting from errors subsequently discovered by the Owner's auditors in such documentation; and
- .6 Retainage withheld pursuant to Section 5.1.7.

§ 5.1.6.5 The Owner and the Contractor shall agree upon a mutually acceptable procedure for review and approval of payments to Subcontractors and the percentage of retainage held on Subcontracts, and the Contractor shall execute subcontracts in accordance with those agreements.

§ 5.1.6.6 In taking action on the Contractor's Applications for Payment, the Construction Manager ~~and Architect~~ shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of the information furnished by the Contractor and such action shall not be deemed to be a representation that (1) the Construction Manager ~~or Architect~~ have made a detailed examination, audit, or arithmetic verification of the documentation submitted in accordance with Section 5.1.6.1 or other supporting data; (2) that the Construction Manager ~~or Architect~~ have made exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections; or (3) that the Construction Manager ~~or Architect~~ have made examinations to ascertain how or for what purposes the Contractor has used amounts previously paid on account of the Contract. Such examinations, audits, and verifications, if required by the Owner, will be performed by the Owner's auditors acting in the sole interest of the Owner.

§ 5.1.6.7 Except with the Owner's prior approval, the Contractor shall not make advance payments to suppliers for materials or equipment which have not been delivered and stored at the site.

§ 5.1.6.8 If final completion of the Work is materially delayed through no fault of the Contractor, then the Owner shall pay the Contractor any additional amounts in accordance with Article 9 of AIA Document A232-2019.

§ 5.1.7 Retainage

§ 5.1.7.1 For each progress payment made prior to when the Work of this Contract is substantially complete, the Owner may withhold the following amount, as retainage, from the payment otherwise due:

(Insert a percentage or amount to be withheld as retainage from each Application for Payment. The amount of retainage may be limited by governing law.)

Ten percent (10%) of the first fifty percent (50%) of the contract amount and zero percent (0%) thereafter.

§ 5.1.7.1.1 The following items are not subject to retainage:

(Insert any items not subject to the withholding of retainage, such as general conditions, insurance, etc.)

NA

§ 5.1.7.2 Reduction or limitation of retainage, if any, shall be as follows:

(If the retainage established in Section 5.1.7.1 is to be modified prior to when the entire Work of this Contract is substantially complete, including modifications for completion of portions of the Work as provided in Section 3.4.2, insert provisions for such modifications.)

NA

§ 5.1.7.3 Except as set forth in this Section 5.1.7.3, when the Work of this Contract is substantially complete, the Contractor may submit an Application for Payment that includes the retainage withheld from prior Applications for Payment pursuant to this Section 5.1.7. The Application for Payment submitted when the Work of this Contract is substantially complete shall not include retainage as follows:

(Insert any other conditions for release of retainage when the Work of this Contract is substantially complete, or upon Substantial Completion of the Work of all Contractors on the Project or portions thereof.)

NA

§ 5.2 Final Payment

§ 5.2.1 Final Payment Where the Contract Sum is Based on a Stipulated Sum

§ 5.2.1.1 Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Contract Sum, shall be made by the Owner to the Contractor when

- .1 the Contractor has fully performed the Contract except for the Contractor's responsibility to correct Work as provided in Article 12 of AIA Document A232–2019, and to satisfy other requirements, if any, which extend beyond final payment; and
- .2 a final Certificate for Payment or Project Certificate for Payment has been issued by the Architect.

§ 5.2.1.2 The Owner's final payment to the Contractor shall be made no later than 30 days after the issuance of the final Certificate for Payment or Project Certificate for Payment, or as follows:

NA

§ 5.2.2 Final Payment Where the Contract Sum is Based on the Cost of the Work with or without a Guaranteed Maximum Price

§ 5.2.2.1 Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Contract Sum, shall be made by the Owner to the Contractor when

- .1 the Contractor has fully performed the Contract except for the Contractor's responsibility to correct Work as provided in Article 12 of AIA Document A232–2019, and to satisfy other requirements, if any, which extend beyond final payment;
- .2 the Contractor has submitted a final accounting for the Cost of the Work, pursuant to Exhibit B, Determination of the Cost of the Work and a final Application for Payment; and
- .3 a final Certificate for Payment or Project Certificate for Payment has been issued by the Architect in accordance with Exhibit B, Determination of the Cost of the Work.

§ 5.2.2.2 The Owner's final payment to the Contractor shall be made no later than 30 days after the issuance of the final Certificate for Payment or Project Certificate for Payment, or as follows:

NA

Request for final payment shall be accompanied by a notarized Final Waiver of Lien using Tecton Lien Waiver form only, within thirty (30) days of the Date of Substantial Completion or completion of all Punch List items, whichever is sooner.

§ 5.3 Payments due and unpaid under the Contract shall bear interest from the date payment is due at the rate stated below, or in the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the place where the Project is located.

(Insert rate of interest agreed upon, if any.)

Seven (7) % per annum.

ARTICLE 6 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

§ 6.1 Initial Decision Maker

The ~~Architect~~ Construction Manager will serve as Initial Decision Maker pursuant to Article 15 of AIA Document A232–2019, unless the parties appoint below another individual, not a party to this Agreement, to serve as Initial Decision Maker.

(If the parties mutually agree, insert the name, address and other contact information of the Initial Decision Maker, if other than the ~~Architect~~ Construction Manager.)

§ 6.2 Binding Dispute Resolution

For any Claim subject to, but not resolved by, mediation pursuant to Article 15 of AIA Document A232–2019, the method of binding dispute resolution shall be as follows:

(Check the appropriate box.)

Init.

Arbitration pursuant to Article 15 of AIA Document A232–2019.

Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction.

Other: *(Specify)*

If the Owner and Contractor do not select a method of binding dispute resolution, or do not subsequently agree in writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, Claims will be resolved by litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction.

ARTICLE 7 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

§ 7.1 Where the Contract Sum is a Stipulated Sum

§ 7.1.1 The Contract may be terminated by the Owner or the Contractor as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A232–2019.

§ 7.1.1.1 If the Contract is terminated for the Owner’s convenience in accordance with Article 14 of AIA Document A232–2019, then the Owner shall pay the Contractor a termination fee as follows:

(Insert the amount of, or method for determining, the fee, if any, payable to the Contractor following a termination for the Owner’s convenience.)

NA

§ 7.1.2 The Work may be suspended by the Owner as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A232–2019.

§ 7.2 Where the Contract Sum is Based on the Cost of the Work with or without a Guaranteed Maximum Price

§ 7.2.1 Termination

§ 7.2.1.1 The Contract may be terminated by the Owner or the Contractor as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A232–2019.

§ 7.2.1.2 Termination by the Owner for Cause

§ 7.2.1.2.1 If the Owner terminates the Contract for cause as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A232–2019, the Owner shall then only pay the Contractor an amount as follows:

- .1 Take the Cost of the Work incurred by the Contractor to the date of termination;
- .2 Add the Contractor’s Fee, computed upon the Cost of the Work to the date of termination at the rate stated in Section 4.3.2 or 4.4.2, as applicable, or, if the Contractor’s Fee is stated as a fixed sum in that Section, an amount that bears the same ratio to that fixed-sum Fee as the Cost of the Work at the time of termination bears to a reasonable estimate of the probable Cost of the Work upon its completion;
- .3 Subtract the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner; and
- .4 Subtract the costs and damages incurred, or to be incurred, by the Owner under Article 14 of AIA Document A232–2019.

§ 7.2.1.2.2 When the Contract Sum is based on the Cost of the Work with a Guaranteed Maximum Price, if the Owner terminates the Contract for cause as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A232–2019, the amount, if any, to be paid to the Contractor under Article 14 of AIA Document A232–2019 shall not cause the Guaranteed Maximum Price to be exceeded, nor shall it exceed the amount calculated in Section 7.2.1.2.1.

§ 7.2.1.2.3 The Owner shall also pay the Contractor fair compensation, either by purchase or rental at the election of the Owner, for any equipment owned by the Contractor that the Owner elects to retain and that is not otherwise included in the Cost of the Work under Section 7.2.1.2.1.1. To the extent that the Owner elects to take legal assignment of subcontracts and purchase orders (including rental agreements), the Contractor shall, as a condition of receiving the payments referred to in this Article 7, execute and deliver all such papers and take all such steps, including the legal assignment of such subcontracts and other contractual rights of the Contractor, as the Owner may require for the purpose of fully vesting in the Owner the rights and benefits of the Contractor under such

subcontracts or purchase orders. All Subcontracts, purchase orders and rental agreements entered into by the Contractor will contain provisions allowing for assignment to the Owner as described above.

§ 7.2.1.3 Termination by the Owner for Convenience

If the Owner terminates the Contract for convenience in accordance with Article 14 of AIA Document A232–2019, then the Owner shall pay the Contractor a termination fee as follows:

(Insert the amount of or method for determining the fee, if any, payable to the Contractor following a termination for the Owner's convenience.)

NA

§ 7.3 Suspension

The Work may be suspended by the Owner as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A232–2019; in such case, the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be increased as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A232–2019, except that the term “profit” shall be understood to mean the Contractor’s Fee as described in Section 4.3.2 or 4.4.2, as applicable, of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 8 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

§ 8.1 Where reference is made in this Agreement to a provision of AIA Document A232–2019 or another Contract Document, the reference refers to that provision as amended or supplemented by other provisions of the Contract Documents.

§ 8.2 The Owner’s representative:

(Name, address, email address, and other information)

Tom Murtaugh

20 N. Third Street

Lafayette, IN 47901

Telephone Number: (765) 423-9215

Mobile Number: (765) 714-7781

Email Address: tmurtaugh@tippecanoe.in.gov

Owners On-Site Representative:

- Scott Niemantsverdriet, Project Manager
- 102 North 3rd Street, Suite 201
- Lafayette, IN 47901
- Telephone Number: 765-429-5232
- Fax Number: 765-429-5509
- Mobile Number: 765-413-5699
- Email Address: snemo@tectoncm.com

§ 8.3 The Contractor’s representative:

(Name, address, email address, and other information)

Matt Huston

2723 Old Romney Rd.

Lafayette, IN 47909

Telephone Number: (765) 474-6115

Email Address: matth@hustonelectric.com

§ 8.4 Neither the Owner’s nor the Contractor’s representative shall be changed without ten days’ prior notice to the other party.

§ 8.5 Insurance and Bonds

§ 8.5.1 The Owner and the Contractor shall purchase and maintain insurance as set forth in AIA Document A132™–2019, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor, Construction Manager as Adviser Edition, Exhibit A, Insurance and Bonds, and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

<u>INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS</u>	
<u>All Contractors will be required to provide up-to-date CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE evidencing insurance as stated in the summary below. All Contractors will be required to add TECTON CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT (Construction Manager) and OWNER (Owner) as additional insureds under their GENERAL LIABILITY policy with respect to any other insurance afforded to Owner and Contractor.</u>	
<u>The insurance coverage herein shall be sufficient type, scope, and duration to ensure coverage for the Contractor and Owner for liability related to any manifestation date within the applicable statutes of limitation and/or repose which pertain to any work performed by or on behalf of the Contractor of Owner in relation to the Project. Subcontractor agrees to maintain the above insurance for the benefit of the Contractor and Owner for a period of ten years, or the expiration of the Statute of Limitations, whichever is later.</u>	
<u>Summary:</u>	
<u>COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY:</u>	
<u>General Aggregate Limit (to apply per project)</u>	<u>\$2,000,000.00</u>
<u>Products and Completed Operations</u>	<u>\$2,000,000.00</u>
<u>Personal & Advertising Injury Limit</u>	<u>\$1,000,000.00</u>
<u>Each Occurrence Limit</u>	<u>\$1,000,000.00</u>
<u>Medical Expense Limit</u>	<u>\$5,000.00</u>
<u>Show Owners and Tecton Construction Management, Inc. as additional insureds.</u>	
<u>WORKERS COMPENSATION</u>	
<u>State</u>	<u>Statutory</u>
<u>Employer's Liability</u>	
<u>Each Accident</u>	<u>\$500,000.00</u>
<u>Disease - Policy Limit</u>	<u>\$500,000.00</u>
<u>Disease - Each Employee</u>	<u>\$500,000.00</u>
<u>COMPREHENSIVE AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY:</u>	
<u>Each Accident - Combined Single Limit</u>	<u>\$1,000,000.00</u>
<u>(Coverage to apply to any auto including hired, borrowed, & non-owned automobiles.</u>	
<u>UMBRELLA EXCESS LIABILITY</u>	<u>\$1,000,000.00</u>

§ 8.5.2 The Contractor shall provide bonds as set forth in AIA Document A132™–2019, Exhibit A, and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

§ 8.6 Notice in electronic format, pursuant to Article 1 of AIA Document A232–2019, may be given in accordance with AIA Document E203™–2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, if completed, or as otherwise set forth below:

(If other than in accordance with AIA Document E203–2013, insert requirements for delivering notice in electronic format such as name, title, and email address of the recipient and whether and how the system will be required to generate a read receipt for the transmission.)

Notices in electronic format will be sent to the Contractor via the Tecton Document Control System. The Contractor will receive an email sent to the email address in Section 8.3.

§ 8.7 Relationship of the Parties

Where the Contract is based on the Cost of the Work plus the Contractor’s Fee, with or without a Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Contractor accepts the relationship of trust and confidence established by this Agreement and covenants with the Owner to cooperate with the ~~Architect~~ Construction Manager and exercise the Contractor’s skill

and judgment in furthering the interests of the Owner; to furnish efficient business administration and supervision; to furnish at all times an adequate supply of workers and materials; and to perform the Work in an expeditious and economical manner consistent with the Owner's interests. The Owner agrees to furnish and approve, in a timely manner, information required by the Contractor and to make payments to the Contractor in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 8.8 Other provisions:

NA

ARTICLE 9 ENUMERATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

§ 9.1 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents:

- .1 AIA Document A132™–2019, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor, Construction Manager as Adviser Edition
- .2 AIA Document A132™–2019, Exhibit A, Insurance and Bonds Exhibit
- .3 AIA Document A232™–2019, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, Construction Manager as Adviser Edition
- .4 AIA Document E203™–2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, dated as indicated below:
(Insert the date of the E203-2013 incorporated into this Agreement.)

NA

.5 Drawings

- Shelter Planners of America drawings titled, "Tippecanoe County Animal Shelter" (2205-Tipp. Animal Shelter 100percentCD 02-24-23.pdf) dated 2/24/23, 114 pages.

Number	Title	Date
--------	-------	------

.6 Specifications

- Shelter Planners of America specifications titled, "Tippecanoe County New Animal Shelter - Volume 2" (22-05_BP1_Specifications_Vol. No.2.pdf) dated February 24, 2023, 948 pages.

Section	Title	Date	Pages
---------	-------	------	-------

.7 Addenda, if any:

Number	Date	Pages
<u>1</u>	<u>3/17/23</u>	<u>6</u>
<u>2</u>	<u>3/22/23</u>	<u>18</u>
<u>3</u>	<u>3/22/23</u>	<u>38</u>

Number	Date	Pages
--------	------	-------

Portions of Addenda relating to bidding or proposal requirements are not part of the Contract Documents unless the bidding or proposal requirements are also enumerated in this Article 9.

.8 Other Exhibits:

(Check all boxes that apply and include appropriate information identifying the exhibit where required.)

[NA] AIA Document A132™–2019, Exhibit B, Determination of the Cost of the Work

[NA] AIA Document E235™–2019, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, Construction Manager as

AIA Document A132 – 2019. Copyright © 1975, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:31:03 ET on 04/11/2023 under Order No.2114408654 which expires on 02/17/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

Adviser Edition, dated as indicated below:
(Insert the date of the E235-2019 incorporated into this Agreement.)

[NA] The Sustainability Plan:

Title	Date	Pages
<u>NA</u>		

[NA] Supplementary and other Conditions of the Contract:

Document	Title	Date	Pages
<u>NA</u>			

.9 Other documents, if any, listed below:

(List here any additional documents that are intended to form part of the Contract Documents. AIA Document A232-2019 provides that the advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, sample forms, the Contractor's bid or proposal, portions of Addenda relating to bidding or proposal requirements, and other information furnished by the Owner in anticipation of receiving bids or proposals, are not part of the Contract Documents unless enumerated in this Agreement. Any such documents should be listed here only if intended to be part of the Contract Documents.)

Contractor Bid Forms

There is a Payment/Performance Bond Required for this project.

This Agreement is entered into as of the day and year first written above. PROJECT: Tippecanoe Co. Animal Shelter (22-05-Bid Phase 1). BID PACKAGE 1M ELECTRICAL - CSI 26 00 00

OWNER (Signature)

Tom Murtaugh, County Commissioner
(Printed name and title)



CONTRACTOR (Signature)

Matt Huston, Service Manager
(Printed name and title)



Tippecanoe County Animal Shelter Project 22-05

SECTION 00004 BID FORM

BID DUE DATE: March 27, 2023; 9:30 AM

Bid for the construction of the Tippecanoe County Animal Shelter.

Type of Contract: 1M Electrical
(Name of Bid Package, i.e., #2 Mechanical and #3HVAC/Hydrionic Piping, etc.)

Company Name: Huston Electric, INC

Pursuant to notices given, the undersigned proposes to furnish all materials, labor and equipment necessary to complete the work defined in the WORK DESCRIPTION for that Bid Package, per the Plans and Specifications presented by Tecton Construction Management, Inc.

The Owner IS exempt from Indiana State Sales Tax. Indiana State Sales Tax IS NOT to be included in your bid amount.

Note: Contractors must respond to the requested bid and all alternates on this proposal form. If a Contractor has no work on the requested bid or each alternate, write "NO WORK" in the blank space on this proposal form. If the space is left blank and the Contractor has work on the bid or alternate, it will be assumed that the work will be included at no extra charge to the Owner.

To bid on multiple Bid Packages, Prime Contractor must submit individual, separate bid forms for each Bid Package. Combination Bids will be accepted on Bid Form "Combination Bid" only. For a Combination Bid to be considered, the Base Bid Form must also be completed for each Individual Bid Contract separately as well.

BASE BID: All work included in the WORK DESCRIPTION:

LUMP SUM: Five Hundred Fifty Seven Thousand Nine Hundred Thirty One \$ 557,931.00

ALTERNATE #1: Use seed in lieu of sod in selected areas Deduct \$ No Work

ALTERNATE #2: Covered ACO truck parking Deduct \$ 1,500

ALTERNATE #3: Stone Hard Resinous Flooring Add \$ No Work



Tippecanoe County Animal Shelter Project 22-05

ALTERNATE # 4: Installation of 100 special order (puppy paw) ceiling tile.

Add \$ No Work

ALTERNATE # 5: Reduce quantity of hot water heaters and relocate.

Deduct \$ 500

ALTERNATE # 6: Change backflow preventer to one (1) 3".

Add/Deduct \$ No Work

UNIT PRICE #1: Parking lot cement stabilization (\$/Square Yard @ 14" Deep)

\$ No Work

UNIT PRICE #2: New concrete slab-on-grade moisture mitigation (\$/SF) \$ No Work

UNIT PRICE #3: Street sweeping (\$/trip)

\$ No Work

Provide time and material unit costs which includes Indiana Sales Tax (if Owner IS NOT exempt), overhead and profit, mark up on actual material cost or equipment rental, and mark up on subcontractor cost, which will be used as the basis for any time and material work requested of the successful contractors. "Only actual craftsman hours performing the specific work are billable. Supervision, overhead, profit, etc. should be included in the \$/Hr. rate below."

Labor Rate	\$/HR	<u>92</u>
Mark up on Material Cost	%	<u>15</u>
Mark up on Equipment Rental	%	<u>5</u>
Mark up on Subcontractors	%	<u>10</u>

I acknowledge the receipt of the Addendum(s) numbered 1,2,3



Tippecanoe County Animal Shelter Project 22-05

I understand that I must pay, as liquidated damages, the greater of \$300.00 or 0.003 times the contract sum per day for each consecutive calendar day which this portion of the Work is not completed, due to the fault of this contractor, per an agreed upon project schedule which will be prepared after the input by this contractor and others.

IN TESTIMONY, WHEREOF, the Bidder has hereunto set his hand this 27th day of March, 2023.

By: Kalob Weigle, Project Manager

Company Name: Huston Electric, Inc

Company Address: 2723 Old Romney Rd

Lafayette, IN 47909

Company Phone: 765-474-6115